CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT

between the

Syracuse City School District Syracuse, NY

and the

CENTRAL & NORTHERN NEW YORK BUILDING TRADES COUNCIL

Representing

UNIT 5

Effective July 1, 2019

to

June 30, 2025

Contents

NON-DISCRIMINATION STATEMENT	3
ARTICLE 1-RECOGNITION	3
ARTICLE 2-NO STRIKE CLAUSE	3
ARTICLE 3-MANAGEMENT RIGHTS AND RESPOSIBILITIES	3
ARTICLE 4-ASSOCIATION RIGHTS	3
ARTICLE 5-HOURLY WAGE RATES	5
ARTICLE 6-HOLIDAYS	6
ARTICLE 7-HOURS OF WORK/WORK WEEK/ABANDONMENT OF POSITION	6
ARTICLE 8-PERSONAL DAY	6
ARTICLE 9-SICK LEAVE	6
ARTICLE 10-JURY DUTY	7
ARTICLE 11-VACATIONS	7
ARTICLE 12-HEALTH INSURANCE	
ARTICLE 13-DENTAL INSURANCE	11
ARTICLE 14-SICK LEAVE CONSERVATION INCENTIVE PLAN	11
ARTICLE 15-SICKNESS OR DEATH IN IMMEDIATE FAMILY	12
ARTICLE 16-MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT	12
ARTICLE 17-EMPLOYEE RIGHTS OF PROTECTION AND REPRESENTATION	13
ARTICLE 18-SENIORITY	13
ARTICLE 19-LAYOFF AND RECALL	13
ARTICLE 20-GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE	14
ARTICLE 21-HEALTH AND SAFETY	16
ARTICLE 22-JOINT LABOR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE	16
ARTICLE 23-GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS	17
ARTICLE 24-LENGTH OF AGREEMENT	17
APPENDIX A-HEALTH INSURANCE RATES	18

NON-DISCRIMINATION STATEMENT

The District and Central & Northern New York Building Trades Council hereby agree not to limit employment with the District or membership in the Association to any person because of their actual or perceived race, color, national origin, Native American ancestry or ethnicity, creed or religion, marital status, sex, sexual orientation, age, gender identity, gender expression, disability, or any other legally protected category under federal, state or local law.

ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION

The Syracuse City School District (hereinafter referred to as "District") recognizes the Central and Northern New York Building Trades Council (hereinafter referred to as "CNNYBTC") as the Collective Bargaining Unit 5 Maintenance and Trades (hereinafter referred to as "Unit") represented by the individual unions which are signatories to this Agreement.

ARTICLE 2 NO STRIKE CLAUSE

The Unit affirms it does not assert the right to strike, assists or participate in any strike, or impose an obligation to conduct, assist or participate in any strike, slowdown or work stoppage pursuant to Section 210 of New York State Civil Service Law.

ARTICLE 3 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

- A. It is agreed that the District has complete authority over the policies and administration of all District departments and operations, which it shall exercise under the provisions of law and in fulfilling its responsibilities under this Agreement.
- B. Said authority shall include the establishment of work rules and regulations consistent with the terms of this Agreement. The District retains the authority, including (but not limited to) the right to establish, eliminate or modify operations, to determine the size of the work force, the work performed and its place of performance. The right to deal with any matter which involves the District, but is not specifically covered by this Agreement, shall be retained by the District.

ARTICLE 4 ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

A. Dues deductions will be made for members of the Council upon presentation of dues authorization card signed by the member in accordance with the conditions set forth on such card.

- 1. Members shall be entitled to have membership dues for the Unit and its affiliates collected via payroll deduction. Such authorization shall continue from year to year unless revoked in writing by the member. Upon receipt of a written authorization from the member directing payroll deduction, the District shall deduct and remit the bimonthly dues from the regular salary of each employee. For new hires, such deduction is to begin no later than thirty (30) days after the effective date of employment, provided written authorization for payroll deduction has been provided by the Unit to the District prior to the payroll processing deadline for the applicable pay period.
 - 2. Revocation of union membership must be made in writing to the Unit.
- 3. Each payroll period, the District will provide the Unit a breakdown of the Unit's membership dues deductions by member.
- B. Stewards The CNNYBTC shall designate two (2) employees (one chief steward and an alternate when the chief steward is not present at work) to act as steward for all trades represented at the School District only.

C. Job Posting

When a job opening occurs in a skilled classification, the District will post the position using the established online process to fill such vacancy and notification will be made to the Unit. The District will provide such notice in advance of any action to seek referral from other sources.

Upon such notification, the trade union so notified shall submit the names of at least three (3), but not more than six (6), skilled tradespersons to the District for consideration. Individuals so referred shall promptly make themselves available to be interviewed. The District may choose to have a Unit 5 member present during interviews.

This Section is not intended to limit the right of the District to pursue other referral sources as a means of locating candidates for employment. Furthermore, the District reserves it's appointing authority to make a final determination in the selection of appropriate candidates for employment in the skilled trade's position.

ARTICLE 5 HOURLY WAGE RATES

A. Effective from July 1, 2019, through June 30, 2025, the following rates shall apply:

Position	7/1/19*	7/1/20*	7/1/21*	7/1/22	7/1/23	7/1/24
Carpenter Journeyman	\$36.60	\$36.60	\$36.60	\$37.70	\$38.83	\$39.99
Carpenter Crew leader	\$39.35	\$39.35	\$39.35	\$40.53	\$41.75	\$43.00
Electrician Journeyman	\$37.74	\$37.74	\$37.74	\$40.93	\$42.16	\$43.42
Electrician Crew leader	\$40.88	\$40.88	\$40.88	\$44.17	\$45.50	\$46.87
Mason Journeyman	\$37.00	\$37.00	\$37.00	\$38.11	\$39.25	\$40.43
Mason Crew leader	\$38.77	\$38.77	\$38.77	\$39.93	\$41.13	\$42.36
Painter Journeyman	\$35.33	\$35.33	\$35.33	\$36.39	\$37.48	\$38.60
Painter Crew leader	\$37.10	\$37.10	\$37.10	\$38.21	\$39.36	\$40.54
Plasterer/Cementer	\$36.29	\$36.29	\$36.29	\$37.38	\$38.50	\$39.66
Plumber Journeyman	\$37.09	\$37.09	\$37.09	\$38.20	\$39.35	\$40.53
Plumber Crew leader	\$39.12	\$39.12	\$39.12	\$40.29	\$41.50	\$42.75
Sheetmetal Journeyman	\$37.74	\$37.74	\$37.74	\$38.87	\$40.04	\$41.24
Sheetmetal Crew leader	\$39.88	\$39.88	\$39.88	\$41.08	\$42.31	\$43.58
Steamfitter Journeyman	\$37.14	\$37.14	\$37.14	\$38.25	\$39.40	\$40.58
Steamfitter Crew leader	\$39.20	\$39.20	\$39.20	\$40.38	\$41.59	\$42.84

*Retro Cash Payments (Not on Base)				
19-20 20-21 21-22				
\$8,000	\$8,000	\$8,000		

^{*}Retroactive payments will be paid to active Unit members and previous unit members still employed by the District on the date of Board approval of the tentative agreement and any retirees who retired between July 1, 2019 and the date of Board approval of the tentative agreement. Those members who voluntarily resigned from the District shall not be entitled to any retroactive payments.

B. <u>Acting Crew leader</u>

When the regular crew leader is not performing in that capacity and when three or more employees (to include temporary and seasonal skilled trades) of the same trade and within the same department perform a job where a layout is necessary and ordering materials is required, then one of the employees shall be designated as "crew leader" and receive crew leader wages only for the duration of that specific job. Such crew leader designation is not to be considered as a permanent title or permanent assignment.

Crew leader Definition

When three or more employees (to include temporary and seasonal skilled trades) of the same trade and are employed in the same department, then one of the employees shall be designated as "crew leader" and receive crew leader wages.

His/her duties shall include lay out and ordering of materials when required.

^{**}IBEW hourly rates to increase by \$2.00 effective July 1, 2022.

ARTICLE 6 HOLIDAYS

- A. Employees within the defined unit shall follow the non-teaching personnel holiday schedule.
- B. To be eligible for holiday pay, employees must be present, or constructively present (drawing sick leave pay), on the day before or day after the holiday.

ARTICLE 7 HOURS OF WORK/WORK WEEK/ABANDONMENT OF POSITION

- A. The normal work day is established at eight (8) hours excluding lunch and forty (40) hours of work shall constitute a regular work week. The work week for employees shall begin on Monday at 7:00 a.m. and end at 11:00 p.m. the following Friday.
- B. Lunch hour is defined as one-half (1/2) hour inclusive of any travel to and from lunch.
- C. In the event that any employee terminates his or her service with the School District voluntarily and does not provide the District with at least two (2) weeks' notice, s/he shall be subject to loss of all accumulated sick leave, holiday, and vacation time, and other fringe benefits, at the discretion of the Superintendent of Schools. Any employee who does not report for work three (3) days without notification to the Personnel Office shall be considered as having abandoned his or her position with the Syracuse City School District.

ARTICLE 8 PERSONAL DAY

- The District will grant each full-time employee in the unit, three days of personal leave per school
 year on a cumulative basis. Such personal leave day shall be granted only for reasons which are
 financial (real estate closing, Internal Revenue business), legal (court appearance, estate
 settlement, legal consultations, reading of will, adoption), education (involving personal or family
 registration, graduation) or such other valid reason approved by the District.
- 2. Personal days may not be used to extend a vacation or holiday leave, except by written approval of the Superintendent or his/her designee.
- 3. An employee's request for the use of said personal day shall be made in writing and must be submitted at least five (5) working days in advance, to the immediate supervisor.

ARTICLE 9 SICK LEAVE

Members of the Unit employed with effective dates subsequent to July 1 shall be credited with four (4) sick leave days for the first six (6) months of employment and one (1) additional sick leave day per month for the remainder of the first year during which they are employed. On July 1 of each succeeding year, employees shall receive fifteen (15) days, cumulative upon an unrestricted basis.

Members will be eligible to utilize sick time in one (1) hour increments for medical visits with one week notice. In the case of an emergency situation whereas a member cannot give sufficient notice, proof of attendance/doctors verification would be required by the member in order to utilize sick leave in one (1) hour increments. This will be limited to 10 hours per year.

In the event that the member is diagnosed with a chronic illness that requires continuing intermittent medical treatment, the Member will be eligible to utilize sick leave in one (1) hour increments for medical visits with one week notice. The ten hour limit will not apply.

ARTICLE 10 JURY DUTY

Each employee shall be granted leave with pay as may be necessary in order to perform jury duty. Such absence shall not be deducted from any other leave allowance. When an employee receives a notice of call to jury duty, the individual shall notify the administrator for maintenance and operations, or the superintendent of buildings and grounds, to that effect, on the first school day following receipt of such notice by providing to the administrator a copy thereof.

ARTICLE 11 VACATIONS

A. The vacation year shall be July 1 to June 30. July 1 shall be the eligibility date for the determination of vacation benefits. References to "year" or "yearly" shall mean the vacation year. Employees who are hired after July 1 of the initial employment year, and who have been continuously employed on July 1 of the next vacation year, shall be entitled to a prorated vacation in accordance with the following schedule:

Prorated vacation days	Prorated vacation days	Prorated vacation days	Prorated vacation days
July-10	August-9	September-8	October-7
November-7	December-6	January-5	February-4
March-3	April-2	May-2	June-1

Years completed service:	Eligible vacation days:
1 full year of completed service	10 vacation days
8 full years of completed service	15 vacation days
17 full years of completed service	20 vacation days
23 full years of completed service	25 vacation days

- B. Annual vacation shall not be restricted to the summer months, but may be taken at any time in the vacation year which is not detrimental to the area in which the employee works as determined by the District.
- C. Crew leader In the absence of a crew leader, the District, at its discretion, shall appoint an employee for the duration of the absence. If the acting crew leader serves for one (1) day or more s/he

shall receive the crew leader's rate of pay established for that position from the first day s/he assumed that position.

- D. The employee's written request for vacation period must be submitted at least ten (10) working days in advance, to his or her immediate Supervisor for approval. Final review and authorization will be by the Personnel Division. Decision on approval or disapproval shall be made within five (5) work days thereafter.
- E. The employee's written request for a single vacation day must be submitted at least two (2) working days in advance, to his or her immediate Supervisor for approval.
- F. Should an employee be called back to work during his or her vacation, s/he shall be credited with additional vacation days equal to the number of days lost by the early return to work.
- G. If any allowable holiday is observed during the employee's vacation period, an additional day of vacation shall be granted to said employee.
- H. At termination of employment, any earned vacation shall be paid to the employee by the School District at the discretion of the Superintendent of Schools. An employee shall have the right to receive earned vacation time upon retirement.
- I. No employee shall take vacation time prior to the July 1 eligibility date, except in the case of emergency, and with the approval of the Superintendent of Schools, or his or her designee, upon timely written application.
- J. It is agreed that the payroll department will automatically rollover any remaining unused vacation days from a previous year and they will be automatically combined with any new vacation days that the employee will be receiving on July 1st. Those unused remaining vacation days must be used, pending the employee's supervisor's approval, prior to December 31st of the new vacation year or they will be lost.
- K. In the case of death of an employee, compensation for any unused vacation shall be payable to the Estate of the deceased.
- L. For the purpose of calculating vacation eligibility of employees hired by the School District prior to the effective date of this Agreement, those employees whose anniversary date falls between July 1 and December 31 shall use July 1 as a vacation eligibility date.

ARTICLE 12 HEALTH INSURANCE

A. Health Insurance

- 1. The District will provide health insurance for eligible employees pursuant to the Syracuse City School District Health Insurance Program as modified by the Health Plan Addendum.
 - a. For health care, the employees shall contribute the amounts referenced in Appendix A as monthly deductions to the cost of District provided health care benefits depending upon the individual's salary on September 1st or as modified in Appendix A, of the applicable school year. Maximum annual increases shall not be over 8% as outlined in Appendix A.

Retiree health eligibility shall be fifteen (15) years in the Syracuse City School District.

b. Medicare Advantage with Prescription Drug Plan Coverage (MAPD)

All Medicare Eligible retirees (65 years of age and over or disabled) and their Medicare eligible dependents will be enrolled in the District's Medicare Advantage with Prescription Drug plan (MAPD) Medicare-eligible retirees are required to enroll in both Medicare Parts A and B.

c. Cost to retirees

Employees who retire on or after July 1, 2022 shall pay the following contributions for retiree health insurance:

Retiree (non-Medicare) Contributions	\$128 Single Plan \$340 Family Plan
Medicare Advantage	\$64 Single Plan (1/2 retiree POS rate) \$128 Family Plan

^{*}Families that have one Medicare-eligible individual and one or more non-Medicare eligible individuals will be charged the combination of Medicare and non-Medicare single rates.

Medicare eligible retirees and their Medicare-eligible dependents must apply for and pay for Medicare Part B coverage to the Center of Medicare and Medicaid Services.

Retiree health care contributions for each successive school year (July 1-June 30) shall increase based on the annual percentage increase in active employee contributions.

d. Medical and Prescription Coverage for Employees on the Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) Plan:

Members with a start date before July 1, 2015, who are currently enrolled on the PPO plan, shall be eligible for benefits in the Syracuse City School District Preferred Provider Organization Healthcare Plan.

- 1. The co-pay on medical provider visits will be \$15.00. The Emergency Room Co-pay shall be \$100.00.
- 2. For all members hired prior to July 1, 2015, the current out of network deductible of \$75 for individual and \$225 for family shall remain in effect.
- 3. Prescription co-pays shall be as follows:

Employee co-pays	Mail Order	Retail
Generic	\$12.50	\$5.00
Preferred	\$75.00	25%
Non-preferred	\$95.00	25%

e. Medical and Prescription Coverage-Employees on the Health Savings Deductible Healthcare Plan (HSDP)

Members with a start date on or after September 24, 2015, or who elect to switch from the point of service plan, will be eligible to enroll only in the Syracuse City School District Health Savings Deductible Health Care Plan.

- 1. The annual deductible for individual and family coverage shall be at or above the minimum amount allowed for a High Deductible Healthcare Plan to remain qualified under the IRS regulations. The deductible shall be set for the duration of the school year (July 1-June 30) based on the announced or expected increase to the IRS minimum amount during that school year.
- 2. The District reserves the right to increase the deductible of the HSDP option in order to maintain qualification status under the IRS regulations.
- 3. Qualifying employees enrolled in the HSDP shall be eligible to receive a single employer contribution into a Health Savings Account (HSA). In order to qualify, employees must have created a District-approved HSA, be deducting at least \$25 from each paycheck into this HSA and must have never received HSA seeding from the District before.
- a. Employees enrolled in single coverage at the time they initially qualify for the employer contribution shall receive \$1,000. Employees enrolled in family coverage at the time they initially qualify for the employer contribution shall receive \$1,500.
- b. Employees who resign, are terminated, or who give notice of such, shall not receive any employer contribution.

D. Flexible Benefit Plan

The District has established, at no cost to the employee, a flexible benefit spending plan pursuant to Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code, with operating procedures determined by the District in accordance with IRS regulations. This plan may be used for favorable income tax treatment of the employee's health and dental premium contributions, deductibles, co-insurance amounts, other unreimbursed medical expenses, and dependent care assistance.

- E. The District provides well-child care as part of the District Health Insurance Program.
- F. The parties have established a plan for a vision care allowance which shall be administered, on an annual basis. The individual co-pay shall be \$2.06 per month.
- G. Amendment of Coverage's and Benefits.
- 1. Each party agrees that, upon request of the other party during the term of this Agreement, modifications to the coverage's and benefits afforded by the existing plans may be studied and reviewed jointly. Further, the parties may also agree to explore and agree upon other options and benefit configurations in the interests of providing the most beneficial and cost efficient plans and coverage's to the members of the Unit.

Any modifications achieved by the above shall be reduced to writing and become a new amendment to this Agreement.

2. The parties further agree that, upon the expiration of this Agreement, the rates of contribution, as converted to actual dollars, for health, dental and vision plans shall remain in place and not be further increased until a successor agreement is reached.

ARTICLE 13 DENTAL INSURANCE

The District provides dental insurance for eligible employees in the Syracuse City School District Dental Insurance Program.

Effective year:	Individual coverage:	Family coverage:
2019-2020	\$21.00	\$42.00
2020-2021	\$21.00	\$42.00
2021-2022	\$21.00	\$42.00
2022-2023	\$21.00	\$42.00
2023-2024	\$21.00	\$42.00
2024-2025	\$22.00	\$44.00

ARTICLE 14 SICK LEAVE CONSERVATION INCENTIVE PLAN

It is hereby understood and agreed between the City School District and the Central & Northern New York Building Trades Council (CNNYBTC) that the following Sick Leave Conservation Incentive "Plan" shall apply to those employees whose titles are represented by CNNYBTC and who are employed by the City School District. The Sick Leave Conservation Incentive "Plan" has as its purpose to promote the judicious use by eligible employees of the sick leave day benefits. As such, the "Plan" shall consist of the following provisions:

1. Eligibility

To be eligible under the "Plan" an employee must be:

- a. 55 years of age or older (employees retiring prior to age 55 due to a disability are excluded from this benefit);
- b. eligible for retirement benefits under the New York State Employees' Retirement System;
 - c. employed by the City School District a minimum of fifteen (15) years.

2 Irrevocable Letter of Resignation

An eligible employee must submit an irrevocable letter of resignation (in the form prescribed by the School District) which is binding on the employee as of the date specified in such letter. The letter of resignation must be submitted to the School District no less than three (3) months prior to the effective date of retirement.

3. Entitlement Computation

Effective upon approval of their respective bodies, the entitlement payment for an eligible employee will be computed by multiplying the employee's accumulated sick leave, preceding the date of retirement, by utilizing the chart below:

Accumulated Sick Days	Retirement Stipend
Less than 100	\$50.00 per day x number of accumulated days
100-199	\$65.00 per day x number of accumulated days
200 or more	\$75.00 per day x number of accumulated days

^{*}Half days will be rounded up to the nearest whole day.

Sick leave used in the computation of the entitlement payment will be considered and would no longer be available to the employee as paid sick leave. Consequently, only the final year's sick leave allocation will be available for use as a result of a bona fide absence due to sickness.

4. Employees who retire pursuant to this Section shall have the actual funds paid via 403(b), subject to NYS retirement regulations.

ARTICLE 15 SICKNESS OR DEATH IN IMMEDIATE FAMILY

- A. Leaves of absence with pay of up to five (5) working days shall be granted to an employee by his or her immediate Supervisor on time card approval, upon satisfactory evidence of reasonable cause such as serious illness in the immediate family. The immediate family shall be defined as Spouse, Parent, Sibling, Child, Grandparents and Grandchildren, Guardian in loco parentis, In-Laws in the above categories, where applicable. No deductions from vacation or sick leave time shall be made in this regard. Upon showing of reasonable continuing cause such leave may be extended to a maximum often (10) days. The excess above five (5) days shall be charged against the employee's earned vacation time. In the event like circumstances reoccur within a single year, an additional four (4) days, with pay, may be authorized by the Superintendent of Schools or Superintendent's Representative, upon written request. Unused family illness days outlined in this Article will be added to the accumulated sick leave day's account at the end of the calendar year.
- B. Each member shall be granted up to five (5) days of leave with full pay for each death in the immediate family. Such leave shall not be curtailed because of use of family illness days and shall be on a non-cumulative basis.
- C. Each member shall be allowed one (1) day to attend the funeral of any of the following members of the family: Aunt, Uncle, Niece, Nephew, Cousin, In-Laws in the above categories, where applicable.

ARTICLE 16 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT

A. Maintenance and Trades employee assigned to more than one school facility in any one school day will receive, upon written request to the Supervising Director of School Services, the then current Internal Revenue Service mileage rate for all inter-school travel required in connection with employment.

ARTICLE 17 EMPLOYEE RIGHTS OF PROTECTION AND REPRESENTATION

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to deny any employee their rights under applicable New York State Civil Service Laws and Regulations. The CNNYBTC shall have the right to present grievances to the District free from interference, coercion, restraint, discrimination or reprisal, and shall have the right to be represented at all stages thereof.

ARTICLE 18 SENIORITY

A. <u>Definition</u>

Seniority shall constitute a length of continuous, full-time service as an employee of the District in a job, or jobs, covered by this contract, and shall accrue from the date the person was first hired or following a break in seniority from the date the employment was re-hired.

B. <u>Termination of Seniority</u>

All seniority rights shall be terminated by:

- 1. A resignation or retirement;
- 2. Justifiable discharge or termination;
- 3. Absence due to layoff of one year or longer;
- 4. Absence due to physical disability, which continues for one year or more;
- 5. Failure to return to work after recall from layoff; and
- 6. Failure to return to work at the expiration of a leave of absence.

ARTICLE 19 LAYOFF AND RECALL

The word "layoff" means a reduction in work force for any reason including but not limited to a reduction in the number of employees in a trade classification or classifications as defined by the District, the elimination of jobs because of consolidation of duties, the installation of new equipment or machinery, or the curtailment or replacement of the existing facility or because of any other reason.

In the event of a layoff, the following procedure will be followed:

- 1. Temporary and seasonal employees in the classification involved will be first laid off;
- 2. Probationary employees in the classification involved will be the next laid off;
- 3. Seniority employees in the classification involved will be laid off in reverse order of seniority.

When the work force is increased after a layoff, employees will be recalled according to the order of seniority as defined elsewhere in the agreement, provided that in all cases the employee recalled must be able to perform the work in the classification from which he or she was laid off.

Notice of recall shall be sent to the employee at his/her last known address by registered or certified mail. If any employee fails to report for work by the fifth day from the date of mailing of the notice of recall, he/she shall be considered a "quit". Recall rights of an employee who has not been recalled after layoff shall expire one year from the date of the layoff.

Temporary and seasonal employees do not have recall rights under this Article.

ARTICLE 20 GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE

- A. For the purpose of this Agreement, a grievance shall be defined as a dispute or controversy between an individual covered by this Agreement and the District, arising out of the application or interpretation of this Agreement. It is expressly understood and agreed by the parties this Grievance and Arbitration Procedure does not apply to, and is not intended as a substitute or alternative for, an action permitted or required by the District or members of this Unit under any article of the State Civil Service Law or Rules; for the purpose of this Agreement, with the exception of the above qualification, any and all employees in the Unit shall come under the provisions of this Article, unless such inclusion is expressly and specifically abridged or modified in this Agreement.
- B. As hereinbefore set forth, each employee within the Unit shall have the right to present his or her grievance in accordance with the provisions provided herein, free from interference, restraint, discrimination, or coercion, and shall have the right to be represented by an appropriate representative of his or her own choosing.

Since it is important to good relationships that grievances be processed as rapidly as possible, every effort will be made by all parties to expedite the process. The time limits specified herein shall be of the essence and may be extended only by advance mutual written agreement. It is also expressly understood and agreed that strict compliance with the time limits set forth in each step of this procedure shall be a condition precedent to the arbitration of any grievance subject to this procedure.

- C. It is understood and agreed that this Article shall not be a substitute for any other appropriate action or relief available to any employee who is covered by the terms and conditions of this Agreement. In the event any such employee elects to invoke such alternative statutory relief, however, such election shall be considered to be a waiver of his or her rights to thereafter seek recourse by means of this Article. Moreover, it is further understood and agreed that a grievance, as defined in Section 682(4) of Article 16 of the General Municipal Law, shall not be eligible to be processed in accordance with the provisions of this Article, and, therefore, not subject to arbitration.
- D. In the event that a number of grievances arise which contain common question of fact, they may be consolidated into one grievance on the motion of the Board, the Superintendent, or the Unit and processed as one grievance, except where such consolidation may prejudice the rights of any party.
- E. The Board agrees that it will apply to all substantially similar situations the decision of an arbitrator sustaining a grievance, and the Unit agrees that it will not bring or continue, and that it will not

represent any employee, in any grievance which is substantially similar to a grievance denied by the decision of an arbitrator.

F. The preparation and processing of grievances, insofar as practicable, shall be conducted during the hours of employment. There shall be no extra pay for time spent in preparation and processing of a grievance during non-work hours.

G. Procedure.

Stage One. Any employee who believes s/he has a justifiable grievance shall discuss the matter with his or her Supervisor, with or without an appropriate representative present, in any attempt to settle the same within five (5) days after the grievance occurs. However, any such employee may, instead, if s/he so desires, report the matter to an appropriate Grievance Committee member, who shall take it up with the employee's Supervisor in a sincere effort to solve the problem within said five (5) day period. If the employee desires, s/he may be present during the discussion. If the Supervisor, the employee, or the appropriate representative feels the need for aid in arriving at an equitable solution, they may discuss with, or, if advisable, invite such additional District or appropriate representative as may be necessary and available, but such additional participants, whether actually present or consulted, shall not relieve the Supervisor, the employee, or the appropriate representative, from responsibility for solving the problem. Within five (5) days after the oral presentation of the problem, the Supervisor shall communicate on an oral basis, his or her decision to the employee and/or to the appropriate representative, if s/he was designated to represent the employee. The foregoing procedure, if followed in good faith by both parties, should lead to a fair and speedy solution of most of the complaints arising out of the normal operation of the School District. If, however, a complaint or problem is not resolved satisfactorily in Stage One, it can be presented in writing and processed in Stage Two.

Stage Two:

- (a) If a satisfactory adjustment is not reached in Stage One, the grievance shall be reduced to writing, and two (2) copies shall be served upon the Superintendent for his written decision. The employee or the appropriate Grievance Committee member may, within five (5) days thereafter, request a review and determination of his or her grievance by the Superintendent of the School District, or his or her authorized representative. The designated representative of the School Superintendent, for purposes of this Article, shall exercise the full authority of the Superintendent. The petition to the Superintendent shall be in writing and shall contain statements relating to the specific nature of the grievance and the facts surrounding it. The petition shall be forwarded both to the Superintendent and to the Supervisor to whom the grievance was originally presented. Thereupon, and within two (2) days thereafter, the Supervisor shall submit to the Superintendent a written statement of his or her information concerning the specific nature of the grievance and the facts related thereto.
- (b) The Superintendent, or his or her duly authorized representative, may hold an informal hearing within five (5) days, upon receiving a request from the employee, the appropriate representative or the Supervisor.

(c) The Superintendent, or duly designated representative, shall answer said petition in writing. S/He will write his or her decision in duplicate, stating the reasons therefore, and sign and date both copies, within five (5) days after receiving the request from the employee or the appropriate representative, or within five (5) days after the informal hearing has been held. One copy shall be the property of the Unit and the other kept by the District.

Stage Three:

- (a) In the event the grievance is unresolved after being processed through the steps of the grievance procedure, the employee shall, within ten (10) days after receiving notification of the Superintendent's decision, obtain the endorsement of the appropriate Grievance Committee in writing, and request that the grievance be submitted to arbitration.
- (b) After receiving the endorsement, the appropriate representative shall communicate, in writing, with the President of the Board, which an appeal is being made, pursuant to Stage Three of this Article. 15
- (c) At this time, the parties will write a joint letter to the Public Employee Relations Board and others agreed to by the union and district, re-requesting that it submit a panel of arbitrators so that a single arbitrator may be selected by mutual agreement. The expense of arbitration shall be shared equally by the School District and the Unit. All other expenses incurred shall be paid by the party incurring them. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding to the parties of this Agreement. The arbitrator shall, when making said decision, have no power to add to, subtract from, or modify the specific provisions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 21 HEALTH AND SAFETY

- A. The School District will formulate a random drug testing policy in cooperation with all affected bargaining units. Effective upon implementation of said policy, any unit member authorized to drive a school district vehicle shall be subject to the school district random drug testing policy.
- B. Effective July 1, 2022, the District will pay each member \$150 per year for the purchase of safety shoes. It is expected that each member maintains appropriate safety shoes at all times.

ARTICLE 22 JOINT LABOR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

A. To continue and assist labor harmony a Labor/Management Committee will meet on a quarterly basis consisting of: the Safety Committee, the Unit Steward, Business Representatives and members determined by the Superintendent of Schools and/or designee.

B. The parties recognize the importance of securing employment both for the students of the District and for the Members of CNNYBTC. As such, the parties agree to meet on a quarterly basis in order to develop a collaborative approach to attracting and retaining graduates of SCSD into existing CNNYBTC apprenticeship programs.

ARTICLE 23 GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS

This Agreement and its component provisions are subordinate to any present or future Federal or New York State Laws and Regulations. If any Federal or New York State Law or Regulation or the final decisions of any Federal or New York Court or administration, agency, affects any provision of this Agreement, each such provision will be deemed mended to the extent necessary to comply with such law, regulation or decision, but this Agreement will not be otherwise affected.

ARTICLE 24 LENGTH OF AGREEMENT

The terms of this Agreement shall be effective commencing July 1, 2019 except as modified herein, and shall continue in full force and effect until June 30, 2025.

CENTRAL AND NORTHERN NEW YORK

BUILDING TRADES COUNCIL-UNIT 5

Gregory Lancette

President

SYRACUSE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Anthony Q. Davis

Superintendent of Schools

2019-2025 Health Insurance Rates - POS Plan

Rates change September 1st

Health Contributions 2019-2020		Anr	nual	Per Pay	check	
Salary	Level	%	Individual	Family	Individual	Family
\$0.00-\$29,999	1	10	\$798.40	\$2,107.50	33.27	87.81
\$30,000 - \$42,052	2	12	\$958.08	\$2,529.00	39.92	105.38
\$42,053 - \$59,999	3	17	\$1,357.27	\$3,582.75	56.55	149.28
\$60,000 - \$79,999	4	20	\$1,596.79	\$4,215.00	66.53	175.63
\$80,000 - \$99,999	5	22	\$1,756.47	\$4,636.50	73.19	193.19
\$100,000 + Above	6	27	\$2,155.67	\$5,690.25	89.82	237.09

PREMIUM EQUIVALENT RATE				
(ACTUAL)				
Individual \$7,984				
Family	\$21,075			

Health Contributions 2020-2021		Anr	nual	Per Paycheck		
Salary	Level	%	Individual	Family	Individual	Family
\$0.00-\$29,999	1	10	\$798.40	\$2,107.50	33.27	87.81
\$30,000 - \$42,052	2	12	\$958.08	\$2,529.00	39.92	105.38
\$42,053 - \$59,999	3	17	\$1,357.27	\$3,582.75	56.55	149.28
\$60,000 - \$79,999	4	20	\$1,596.79	\$4,215.00	66.53	175.63
\$80,000 - \$99,999	5	22	\$1,756.47	\$4,636.50	73.19	193.19
\$100,000 + Above	6	27	\$2,155.67	\$5,690.25	89.82	237.09

PREMIUM EQUIVALENT RATE						
(ACTUAL)						
Individual \$7,765						
Family \$20,840						

Health Contributions 2021-2022		Annual		Per Paycheck		
Salary	Level	%	Individual	Family	Individual	Family
\$0.00-\$29,999	1	10	\$798.40	\$2,107.50	33.27	87.81
\$30,000 - \$42,052	2	12	\$958.08	\$2,529.00	39.92	105.38
\$42,053 - \$59,999	3	17	\$1,357.27	\$3,582.75	56.55	149.28
\$60,000 - \$79,999	4	20	\$1,596.79	\$4,215.00	66.53	175.63
\$80,000 - \$99,999	5	22	\$1,756.47	\$4,636.50	73.19	193.19
\$100,000 + Above	6	27	\$2,155.67	\$5,690.25	89.82	237.09

PREMIUM EQUIVALENT RATE						
(ACTUAL)						
Individual \$8,185						
Family \$21,966						

Health Contributions 2022-2023		Annual		Per Paycheck		
Salary	Level	%	Individual	Family	Individual	Family
\$0.00-\$29,999	1	10	\$798.40	\$2,107.50	33.27	87.81
\$30,000 - \$42,052	2	12	\$958.08	\$2,529.00	39.92	105.38
\$42,053 - \$59,999	3	17	\$1,357.27	\$3,582.75	56.55	149.28
\$60,000 - \$79,999	4	20	\$1,596.79	\$4,215.00	66.53	175.63
\$80,000 - \$99,999	5	22	\$1,756.47	\$4,636.50	73.19	193.19
\$100,000 + Above	6	27	\$2,155.67	\$5,690.25	89.82	237.09

PREMIUM EQUIVALENT RATE						
(ACTUAL)						
Individual \$8,626						
Family \$22,840						

Health Contributions 2023-2024		Annual		Per Paycheck		
Salary	Level	%	Individual	Family	Individual	Family
\$0.00-\$29,999	1	10	\$852.10	\$2,253.31	35.50	93.89
\$30,000 - \$42,052	2	12	\$1,022.52	\$2,703.97	42.60	112.67
\$42,053 - \$59,999	3	17	\$1,448.56	\$3,830.63	60.36	159.61
\$60,000 - \$79,999	4	20	\$1,704.19	\$4,506.62	71.01	187.78
\$80,000 - \$99,999	5	22	\$1,874.61	\$4,957.29	78.11	206.55
\$100,000 + Above	6	27	\$2,300.66	\$6,083.94	95.86	253.50

PREMIUM EQUIVALENT RATE				
(ACTUAL)				
Individual \$8,521				
Family \$22,533				

Health Contributions 2024-2025		Annual		Per Paycheck		
Salary	Level	%	Individual	Family	Individual	Family
\$0.00-\$29,999	1	10	\$920.26	\$2,433.58	38.34	101.40
\$30,000 - \$42,052	2	12	\$1,104.32	\$2,920.29	46.01	121.68
\$42,053 - \$59,999	3	17	\$1,564.45	\$4,137.08	65.19	172.38
\$60,000 - \$79,999	4	20	\$1,840.53	\$4,867.15	76.69	202.80
\$80,000 - \$99,999	5	22	\$2,024.58	\$5,353.87	84.36	223.08
\$100,000 + Above	6	27	\$2,484.71	\$6,570.66	103.53	273.78

PREMIUM EQUIVALENT RATE					
(+8% PROJECTED)					
Individual \$9,203					
Family \$24,336					

2019-2025 Health Insurance Rates - High Deductible Plan

Rates change September 1st

Health Contributions 2019-2020		HDHP .	Annual	HDHP Per	Paycheck	
Salary	Level	%	Individual	Family	Individual	Family
\$0.00-\$29,999	1	10	\$760.39	\$2,007.19	31.68	83.63
\$30,000 - \$42,052	2	12	\$912.47	\$2,408.63	37.86	100.36
\$42,053 - \$59,999	3	17	\$1,292.67	\$3,412.23	53.86	142.18
\$60,000 - \$79,999	4	20	\$1,520.78	\$4,014.38	63.37	167.27
\$80,000 - \$99,999	5	22	\$1,672.86	\$4,415.82	69.70	183.99
\$100,000 + Above	6	27	\$2,053.06	\$5,419.42	85.54	225.81

HDHP PREMIUM EQI RATE (ACTUAL)	UIVALENT
Individual	\$7,604
Family	\$20,072

Haalah Camanih diana	2020.3	2024	Прпр	A	LIDUD Day	Davish a ale
Health Contributions 2020-2021 Salary Level %		HDHP Annual Individual Family		HDHP Per Paycheck Individual Family		
Salary		_				
\$0.00-\$29,999	1	10	\$760.39	\$2,007.19	31.68	83.63
\$30,000 - \$42,052	2	12	\$912.47	\$2,408.63	38.02	100.36
\$42,053 - \$59,999	3	17	\$1,292.67	\$3,412.23	53.86	142.18
\$60,000 - \$79,999	4	20	\$1,520.78	\$4,014.38	63.37	167.27
\$80,000 - \$99,999	5	22	\$1,672.86	\$4,415.82	69.70	183.99
\$100,000 + Above	6	27	\$2,053.06	\$5,419.42	85.54	225.81

HDHP PREMIUM EQUIVALENT				
RATE (ACTUAL)				
Individual \$6,994				
Family \$18,772				

Health Contributions 2021-2022		HDHP Annual		HDHP Per Paycheck		
Salary	Level	%	Individual	Family	Individual	Family
\$0.00-\$29,999	1	10	\$760.39	\$2,007.19	31.68	83.63
\$30,000 - \$42,052	2	12	\$912.47	\$2,408.63	38.02	100.36
\$42,053 - \$59,999	3	17	\$1,292.67	\$3,412.23	53.86	142.18
\$60,000 - \$79,999	4	20	\$1,520.78	\$4,014.38	63.37	167.27
\$80,000 - \$99,999	5	22	\$1,672.86	\$4,415.82	69.70	183.99
\$100,000 + Above	6	27	\$2,053.06	\$5,419.42	85.54	225.81

HDHP PREMIUM EQUIVALENT				
RATE (ACTUAL)				
Individual	\$7,334			
Family \$19,682				

Health Contributions 2022-2023		HDHP Annual		HDHP Per Paycheck		
Salary	Level	%	Individual	Family	Individual	Family
\$0.00-\$29,999	1	10	\$760.39	\$2,007.19	31.68	83.63
\$30,000 - \$42,052	2	12	\$912.47	\$2,408.63	38.02	100.36
\$42,053 - \$59,999	3	17	\$1,292.67	\$3,412.23	53.86	142.18
\$60,000 - \$79,999	4	20	\$1,520.78	\$4,014.38	63.37	167.27
\$80,000 - \$99,999	5	22	\$1,672.86	\$4,415.82	69.70	183.99
\$100,000 + Above	6	27	\$2,053.06	\$5,419.42	85.54	225.81

HDHP PREMIUM EQUIVALENT				
RATE (ACTUAL)				
Individual	\$7,268			
Family \$19,244				

Health Contributions 2023-2024		HDHP Annual		HDHP Per Paycheck		
Salary	Level	%	Individual	Family	Individual	Family
\$0.00-\$29,999	1	10	\$694.45	\$1,836.43	28.94	76.52
\$30,000 - \$42,052	2	12	\$833.34	\$2,203.72	34.72	91.82
\$42,053 - \$59,999	3	17	\$1,180.57	\$3,121.93	49.19	130.08
\$60,000 - \$79,999	4	20	\$1,388.90	\$3,672.86	57.87	153.04
\$80,000 - \$99,999	5	22	\$1,527.79	\$4,040.15	63.66	168.34
\$100,000 + Above	6	27	\$1,875.02	\$4,958.37	78.13	206.60

HDHP PREMIUM EQUIVALENT				
RATE				
(ACTUAL)				
Individual	\$6,945			
Family \$18,364				

Health Contributions 2024-2025		HDHP Annual		HDHP Per Paycheck		
Salary	Level	%			Individual	Family
\$0.00-\$29,999	1	10	\$750.01	\$1,983.35	31.25	82.64
\$30,000 - \$42,052	2	12	\$900.01	\$2,380.02	37.50	99.17
\$42,053 - \$59,999	3	17	\$1,275.01	\$3,371.69	53.13	140.49
\$60,000 - \$79,999	4	20	\$1,500.02	\$3,966.69	62.50	165.28
\$80,000 - \$99,999	5	22	\$1,650.02	\$4,363.36	68.75	181.81
\$100,000 + Above	6	27	\$2,025.02	\$5,355.04	84.38	223.13

HDHP PREMIUM EQUIVALENT					
RATE					
(+8% PROJECTED)					
Individual \$7,500					
Family	\$19,833				